
WAYS & MEANS 
Monday, June 26, 2017 

10:00 a.m. 
 
 
Shaun Gillilland – Chairman 
Thomas Scozzafava – Vice-Chairman 
 
Chairman Gillilland called this Ways & Means Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. with a salute to the 
flag. Upon roll-call, the following Supervisors were found in attendance: Archie Depo, Edward 
Gardner, Shaun Gillilland, Joseph Giordano, Charles Harrington, Mike Marnell, Steve McNally, 
Noel Merrihew, James Monty, Ron Moore, Jerry Morrow, Roby Politi, Randy Preston, Tom 
Scozzafava, Michael Tyler, Joe Pete Wilson and Charlie Whitson.  Wester Miga had been 
previously excused. 
 
Department Heads present were:  Michael Diskin, Judy Garrison, Dan Manning and Dan 
Palmer. 
 
Also present:  Jim Dougan, Jenn Mascarenas, Dawn Belden, Sharon Boisen and Margaret 
Bartley. 
 
News Media:  Keith Lobdell – Sun News. 
 
GILLILLAND:  I will call this meeting of the ways and means to order.  We will start with a salute 
to the flag please.  Thank you.  Roll call please.  Thank you.  I don’t believe we have any guests 
this morning so we will go directly into resolutions. 
 

RESOLUTIONS RECOMMENDED BY THE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
Chairman – C. Harrington    Vice-Chairman -  N. Merrihew 

Monday, June 12, 2017 
 

1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENT OF SCOTT SAYWARD OF 
WILLSBORO AS A MEMBER OF THE COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD 
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES SUBCOMMITTEE, FOR A TERM EFFECTIVE 
JULY 1, 2017 – DECEMBER 31, 2018.  Gillilland, Merrihew 
 

2. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO ISSUE AN RFP FOR 
OUTPATIENT TREATMENT SERVICES FOR ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE 
SERVICES IN ESSEX COUNTY.  Monty, Harrington 
 

3. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENT OF ALEXANDRE ANDRIANOV, 
MD. AS DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES’ DESIGNEE PHYSICIAN IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH NEW YORK STATE MENTAL HYGIENE LAW.  Harrington, 
Tyler 
 

4. RESOLUTION APPROVING THE QUALITY IMPROVEMENT REVIEWS AND 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR THE ESSEX COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT APROVED BY PAC ON 6/6/17.  Gardner, Tyler 
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5. RESOLUTION APPROVING THE QUALITY IMPROVEMENT REVIEWS AND 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR THE ESSEX COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
HOME HEALTH UNIT APROVED BY PAC ON 6/6/17.  Harrington, Morrow 
 

6. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A BUDGET AMENDMENT IN THE PUBLIC HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT INCREASING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $1500.00, ADIRONDACK HEALTH INSTITUTE PPS.  Scozzafava, Depo 
 

7. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE HIRING OF A PART-TIME TELEHEALTH 
PROJECT COORDINATOR IN THE PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT WITH FUNDS 
TO COME FROM DSRIP.  Scozzafava, Marnell 
 

8. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A BUDGET AMENDMENT IN THE PUBLIC HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT INCREASING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $3000.00, ADIRONDACK HEALTH INSTITUTE PPS.  Harrington, Scozzafava 
 

9. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A BUDGET AMENDMENT IN THE PUBLIC HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT INCREASING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $15,000.00, ADIRONDACK HEALTH INSTITUTE PPS.  Morrow, Tyler 
 

10. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A BUDGET AMENDMENT IN THE PUBLIC HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT INCREASING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $17,935.00, DSRIP-AHI.  Scozzafava, Merrihew 
 

11. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A BUDGET AMENDMENT IN THE PUBLIC HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT INCREASING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $339.98, DSRIP-AHI.  Depo, Merrihew 
 

12. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A BUDGET AMENDMENT IN THE OFFICE FOR THE 
AGING DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,343.75, DSRIP-AHI.  Marnell, 
Merrihew 
 

13. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE IN HOURS FOR TWO BUS DRIVER 
POSITIONS IN THE TRANSPORATION DEPARTMENT FROM 35 HOURS TO 40 
HOURS PER WEEK.   Morrow, Whitson 
 

14. RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND PLACING ON FILE THE 2016 TRANSPORTATION 
DEPARTMENT FEDERAL/STATE 5311 REPORT.  Merrihew, Marnell 
 

RESOLUTIONS RECOMMENDED BY THE PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Chairman – S. McNally     Vice-Chairman – G. Morrow 

Monday, June 12, 2017 
 

15. AMENDED:  RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT 
WITH WELLS COMMUNICATIONS FOR A QUALIFIED RADIO TECHNICIAN IN THE 
EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT AT A RATE OF $80.00 AN HOUR AND 
$120.00 OVERTIME AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR 
COUNTY MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAID CONTRACT.  Politi, Merrihew – as 
amended. 
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GILLILLAND:  Discussion? 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Yes, this resolution is a little confusing, a qualified radio technician so we need 
an RFP to, I mean is this a contractual agreement with one individual? 
 
PALMER:  What it is is we go out for the service it’s based upon an hourly rate.  We went out for 
bids. The price per hour, per regular hour was $80.00 an hour, price per hour for overtime was 
$120.00.  If you actually looked at prevailing wage rates for a regular radio technician was 
$105.00 and the prevailing rates for overtime was $157.50 so essentially we just needed to 
have a radio technician available for this so we go out to bid, we get the lowest price we can, we 
go into contract based upon that. If they go to a site it’s based upon that hourly rate that they 
bid. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  So do we have a service contract with Wells now? 
 
PALMER:  We do.  We have a number of service contracts with them. This is a little bit different 
because it identifies a specific radio technician position.  I would have to look at what the others 
are but we do have other ones with Wells. 
 
MANNING: So Dan the amount is $80.00 an hour with $120.00 hour overtime? 
 
PALMER: Yes. 
 
MANNING:  So that should be in the resolution and it should also say authorizing either the 
County Chairman or County Manager execute a contract instead of award RFP so I can fix that 
for regular. 
 
PALMER: They also define within that RFP any parts or anything they need they can only mark 
up, not to exceed 20% of the manufacturer’s list price. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: So not to pick this to death you or Don or somebody needs to review our 
existing contracts that we have with Wells see what they are covering. 
 
PALMER:  Well this is Wells.  I mean no, this is definitely over and above what we currently 
have. This is something that they had to have that’s why they went out to bid for it. 
 
MANNING:  So this will basically say, resolution authorizing the execution of a contract with 
Wells Communications for a qualified radio technician in the Emergency Services Department at 
a rate of $80.00 an hour and $120.00 overtime. 
 
PALMER:  And these guys are actually used throughout your towns.  These are really what 
we’re paying them too is the program and configure the radios. 
 
POLITI: Are you modifying this?  Is somebody modifying this? 
 
GILLILLAND: We need a motion to amend as stated by the County Attorney.  Mr. Politi, second 
by Mr. Merrihew.  Discussion?  All in favor of the amendment, opposed – carries.  Now the 
motion as amended.  All in favor, opposed – carries. 
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16. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH FEDERAL 
ENGINEERING IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $7,500.00, TO PREPARE AND 
DESIGN BID SPECFICATIONS FOR THE ANGIER HILL POWER PLANT UPGRADE 
WITH FUNDS TO COME OUT OF THE RADIO PROJECT; AND FURTHER 
AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SAME.  
Merrihew, Tyler 
 

17. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO AWARD BIDS AND 
ISSUE CONTRACTS OR PURCHASE ORDERS TO THE OFFICE OF EMERGENCY 
SERVICES FOR THE ROUND 4 STATEWIDE INTEROPERABLE COMMUNICATIONS 
GRANT, AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE THE SAME.  Merrihew, Preston 
 

GILLILLAND:  Discussion? 
 
MANNING: I have a question.  Dan what does this mean? 
 
PALMER:  This is just going out for the next round of the interoperability grants, just authorizing 
us to do that. 
 
MANNING: And issue contracts right? 
 
GARRISON:  To go out to bid, he provided a list of equipment. 
 
MANNING:  To go out to bid or award bids? 
 
PALMER: Let me look.  Resolution authorizing to go to bids and issue contracts and purchase 
orders for the Office of Emergency Services for Round 4 statewide interoperable communication 
grant and further authorizing the Chairman or County Manager to execute the same. 
 
GARRISON:  There is a list that Don provided. 
 
PALMER: There was a list.  I don’t know why I’m not showing it? 
 
GARRISON:  You passed it. 
 
PALMER:  There it is.  So it’s going to be for Tessco in the amount of $7,485.00 to purchase 
antennas, coax and associated equipment, Wells Communication in the amount of $45,000 to 
purchase interoperability base station radio and associated equipment on Belfry Mountain and 
Wells Hills, SHI in the amount of $16,766, to purchase network switches to support tower site 
security from the grant funds from NYS contract and Wells Communication in the amount of 
$44,000 to purchase and install tower site security cameras and related equipment from the 
grant funds. Those are the items under that interoperability grant. 
 
GILLILLAND: Any further discussion?  Being none, all in favor, opposed – carries. 

 
18. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO AWARD A 

CONTRACT WITH VERIZON TO SUPPLY A SECOND SET OF TRUNK LINES 
NECESSARY TO PROVIDE REDUNDENT 911 TRUNK SERVICES.  Moore, Whitson 
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GILLILLAND:  Discussion? 
 
MANNING:  This looks like it’s authorizing a contract so it probably should be a resolution 
authorizing the County Chairman or County Manager to execute a contract with Verizon to 
supply a separate set of trunk lines necessary to provide redundant 911 trunk services in the 
amount of, whatever it is? 
 
PALMER: He didn’t have the amount down here. 
 
GARRISON:  Isn’t it $80,000? 
 
PALMER:  It’s more than that I think.  We can get that for you. 
 
MANNING:  Okay. 
 
GILLILAND:  All in favor, opposed – carried. 

 
19. RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION AND CONGRATULATIONS TO DEPUTY SCOTT 

BRIDGE UPON HIS RETIREMENT FROM ESSEX COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE.  
Gardner, unanimous 
 

20. RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION AND CONGRATULATIONS TO CORRECTION 
OFFICER, TERRY COLLINS UPON HIS RETIREMENT FROM ESSEX COUNTY 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE.  Scozzafava, unanimous 
 

RESOLUTIONS RECOMMENDED BY THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
Chairman – N. Merrihew    Vice-Chairman – R. Politi      

Monday, June 12, 2017 
 

21. RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE REGIONAL OFFICE OF SUSTAINABLE TOURISM 
(ROOST) STUDY OF HOSTING THE WORLD UNIVERSITY GAMES.  Politi, Preston 
 

22. RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION TO JOHN “JACK” NAPPER OF THE TOWN OF 
WESTPORT FOR 50 YEARS OF SERVICE TO THE FIRE DEPARTMENT AND 
AMBULANCE SQUAD.  Tyler, unanimous 
 

RESOLUTIONS RECOMMENDED BY THE DPW COMMITTEE 
Chairman – G. Morrow     Vice–Chairman – R. Politi 

Monday, June 19, 2017 
 

23. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE IMPLEMENTATION, AND FUNDING IN THE 
FIRST INSTANCE 100% OF THE FEDERAL-AID AND STATE “MARCHISELLI” 
PROGRAM-AID ELIGIBLE COSTS, OF A TRANSPORTATION FEDERAL-AID 
PROJECT, AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS THEREFORE – HUDSON RIVER BRIDGE 
REPLACEMENT.  Morrow, Marnell 

 
24.  AMENDED:   RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH CREIGHTON MANNING 
ENGINEERING, LLP.  Tyler, Marnell – as amended. 
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GILLILLAND:  Discussion? 
 
MANNING:  I just had one thing, to clean this up a little bit I would ask for an amendment that 
says, resolution authorizing the County Chair or the County Manager to execute a contract with 
Creighton Manning the rest of it can go. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Can I have a motion to the amendment, Mr. Tyler, second by Mr. Marnell.  All in 
favor of the amendment, opposed – carries.  Now the resolution as amended all in favor, 
opposed – carried. 

 
25. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO GO OUT TO BID FOR 

HEATING SYSTEM REPAIRS AT THE ESSEX COUNTY COURTHOUSE.  Depo, 
Harrington 
 

26. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH SCHODER RIVER 
ASSOCIATES IN AN AMOUNT UP TO $8,800.00, FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES AS 
IT RELATES TO THE OREGON PLAINS ROAD OVER LYONS BROOK IN THE 
TOWN OF ST. ARMAND.  Whitson, Tyler 
 

27. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO GO OUT TO BID FOR 
A 60 X 140 FOOT, PRE-ENGINEERED, METAL BUILDING AT THE FAIRGROUNDS, 
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $96,153.00, WITH GRANT FUNDS.  Monty, Tyler 
 

28. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING  THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TO 
ACCEPT A DIGITAL, SOLAR POWERED SPEED SIGN PURCHASED BY A TOWN 
OF ESSEX RESIDENT AND OFFERED TO ESSEX COUNTY.  Gardner, Tyler 
 

RESOLUTIONS RECOMMENDED BY THE PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
Chairman – R. Moore     Vice-Chairman – C. Whitson 

Monday, June 19, 2017 
 

NO RESOLUTIONS  
 

FINANCE/TAX REDUCTION/MANDATE RELIEF COMMITTEE 
Chairman – T. Scozzafava     Vice-Chairman – R. Politi 

Monday, June 19, 2017 
 

29. RESOLUTION DENYING A REFUND OF 2007 TOWN AND COUNTY TAXES TOWN 
OF NORTH ELBA – KEVIN J. KERRIGAN.  Scozzafava, Moore 

 
GARRISON:  Under miscellaneous – you all have a copy on your desks of the letter from DPW.  
The first one is authorizing a contract amendment with Schoder Rivers Associates in an amount 
up to $16,300, for Engineering services including conceptual design, survey, and hydraulic 
analysis as they relate to Morrison Road over Styles Brook Bridge in the Town of Keene with 
funds to come from budgeted funds and further authorizing the County Chairman or County 
manager to execute said contract amendment.  
 

30. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH SCHODER 
RIVERS ASSOCIATES IN AN AMOUNT UP TO $16,300.00, FOR ENGINEERING 
SERVICES INCLUDING CONCEPTUAL DESIGN, SURVEY, AND HYDRAULIC 
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ANALYSIS AS THEY RELATE TO MORRISON ROAD OVER STYLES BROOK 
BRIDGE IN THE TOWN OF KEENE WITH FUNDS TO COME FROM BUDGETED 
FUNDS AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAID CONTRACT AMENDMENT.   Marnell, Wilson 

 
GILLILLAND:  Discussion? 
 
MONTY:  These are county owned bridges? 
 
PALMER:  Yes they are county owned bridges, they were in the bridge bond projects that we 
identified when we took the bridge bond. 
 
GILLILLAND:  And these are the photographs right? 
 
PALMER:  Yes of the conditions of those bridges. 
 
GILLILLAND: Thank you.  Further discussion?  Being none, all in favor, opposed – carries. 
 
GARRISON: Authorizing a contract amendment with Schoder Rivers Associates in an amount 
up to $22,100.00, for engineering services including conceptual design, temporary repair 
design, survey and hydraulic analysis as they relate to the Interbrook Road over Johns Brook 
Bridge in the Town of Keene, with fund to come from budgeted funds and further authorizing the 
County Chairman or County Manager to execute said contract amendment. 
 

31. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH SCHODER 
RIVERS ASSOCIATES IN AN AMOUNT UP TO $22,100.00, FOR ENGINEERING 
SERVICES INCLUDING CONCEPTUAL DESIGN, TEMPORARY REPAIR DESIGN, 
SURVEY AND HYDRAULIC ANALYSIS AS THEY RELATE TO THE INTERBROOK 
ROAD OVER JOHNS BROOK BRIDGE IN THE TOWN OF KEENE, WITH FUND TO 
COME FROM BUDGETED FUNDS AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAID CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT.  Wilson, Morrow 

 
GARRISON:  Authorizing the Essex County Department of Public Works, with assistance from 
the Essex County Community Resources Department to apply for a water quality improvement 
project grant for a salt storage structure at the DPW facility, and further authorizing the County 
Chairman or County Manager to execute said grant application paperwork. 
 

32. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ESSEX COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
WORKS ALONG WITH THE ESSEX COUNTY COMMUNITY RESOURCES 
DEPARTMENT, TO APPLY FOR A WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
GRANT FOR A SALT STORAGE UNIT AT THE DPW FACILITY, AND FURTHER 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
THE SAME.  Wilson, Gardner. 

 
GARRISON:  Authorizing the appointment of Jennifer Mascarenas as the Essex County 
Personnel Officer to fill the unexpired term of the previous Personnel Officer whose term was 
effective January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2021.  Such new appointment shall be 
effective as of the date of this resolution through December 31, 2021. 
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33. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENT OF JENNIFER MASCARENAS 
AS THE ESSEX COUNTY PERSONNEL OFFICER TO FILL THE UNEXPIRED TERM 
OF THE PREVIOUS PERSONNEL OFFICER WHOSE TERM WAS EFFECTIVE 
JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021, SUCH NEW APPOINTMENT 
SHALL BE EFFECTIVE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS RESOLUTION THROUGH 
DECEMBER 31, 2021.  Marnell, Moore 

 
GARRISON:  Authorizing the appointment of Laurie DeZalia as the Essex County Auditor to fill 
the unexpired term of the previous County Auditor whose term was effective January 1, 2016 
through December 31, 2017, such new appointment shall be effective as of August 19, 2017 
through December 31, 2017. 
 

34. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENT OF LAURIE DEZALIA AS THE 
ESSEX COUNTY AUDITOR TO FILL THE UNEXPIRED TERM OF THE PREVIOUS 
COUNTY AUDITOR WHOSE TERM WAS EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH 
DECEMBER 31, 2017, SUCH NEW APPOINTMENT SHALL BE EFFECTIVE AS OF 
AUGUST 19, 2017 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2017.  Preston, Marnell 

 
GARRISON: That is all I have. 
 
GILLILLAND: Any further business? 
 
TYLER:  Yes I’d like to bring this resolution to the board on relieving penalties and interest to 
consolidate the mortgages of the Westport Golf Course.  The total is $62,264.54, they owe a 
total of $217,000 interest and penalties. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Okay there is a resolution on the floor, second? 
 
SCOZZAFVA:  I’ll second it for discussion. 
 
WITHDRAWN:  RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TO RELIEVE INTEREST AND PENALTIES 
ON THE WESTPORT GOLF COURSE PROPERTY IN THE TOWN OF WESTPORT IN AN 
AMOUNT OF $63,264.00.  Tyler, Scozzafava and withdrawn. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Discussion? 
 
TYLER: I would just like to add to that I don’t think we’re really setting precedent here the prior 
owner he didn’t pay his taxes that’s why the current owners are in the situation that they are in, 
they ran this property down, he’s lost a lot of business in the Town of Westport and for Essex 
County.  The new owners show good faith, interest in it, they’re reinvesting into the property and 
the town and fixing it up, they are buying new equipment to bring back the golf course the way it 
was ten, fifteen years ago.  They are amending fences with the public there has been a negative 
attitude over the Westport Golf Course from the previous owner. They’ve never applied for the 
485B tax exemption unfortunately they could have so instead of getting a tax exemption for that 
I would suggest that to show good faith in the Town of Westport bringing back that business in 
all that they are doing for that course and relieve them of the $63,264.54. 
 
GILLILLAND: Further discussion? 
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SCOZZAFAVA:  Yes I spoke with Mr. Tyler on this on Friday and I mean that – I know you don’t 
want to set a precedent but that is a critical piece of property in the southern end of the county 
that certainly contributes a lot to the economy and the previous owner is my understanding they 
were in bankruptcy I’m not certain that was the case or not for a couple of those years but the 
new owners agreed to pay all the existing taxes that are owed it’s the interest and penalties that 
are the issue and again that golf course generates a significant amount of income in fact not 
only to Westport but you’ve got people all over the north country that go down there and utilize 
that course and I would much rather see that course continue to operate than to see it become 
a pasture because that’s probably what would happen. That’s a substantial investment to 
operate a golf course and so on.  I think we need to take all these factors into consideration 
here and make a decision on this so I really would like to hear from our County Attorney and our 
County Treasurer. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Mr. Diskin would you like to come forward and address the issue? 
 
GIORDANO:  Ike can you just relate, what was the total amount of back taxes? 
 
TYLER:  $217,000.62. 
 
GIORDANO:  How much was it in penalties and interest? 
 
TYLER:  $63,264.54 
 
DISKIN: I’ll quickly give you a quick background of what the situation is with the property, back 
in 2013 the previous owner entered into an agreement at that time he only owed 2013 taxes so 
he entered into an agreement to pay off taxes by installments which he was eligible for. He 
made a substantial down payment and made 18 of the 24 payments. He filed bankruptcy in April 
2014 under Chapters 11 later converted it to Chapter 7 in all he paid $43,855.87 in installment 
payments subsequent to that there were no further payments made in 2014,’15,’16 or ’17.  We 
took into consideration the payments he made and deducted them for what was owed for 2013 
and also for what is owed for ’14,’15 and ’16 so the base amount that he still owes the property 
still owes and I have July figures and I will give you July figures because if this was to go 
forward it would eventually be resolved in July so I wanted to give you the most accurate 
figures.  The base amount that would be owed at that point would be $153,736.07, the amount 
of penalties and interest that would be accumulated at that point would be $63,264.55 and if 
they were not relieved the amount that was owed would be $217,000.62. 
There’s another small parcel that’s on there it’s part of the Golf Course, that’s the major part of 
the Golf Course, there’s another small piece that has I believe a building on it I don’t know if it’s 
a house but it’s part of the same project and probably would still have to be incorporated with 
that to be viable for the golf course.  That amount that’s owed the base amount is $11,120.83 
the accumulated penalties and interest are $2,419.29.  All those were included in the base 
amounts that were owed but as far as relieving penalties and interest now I know that in the 
past we’ve reviewed these and I’ve been very consistent in what I said in the past that if we 
haven’t made any errors in billing this or making mistakes in doing this I’ve always been 
opposed to it so I stand opposed to it now.  I’ll answer any questions on it. 
 
TYLER:  Mike has there ever been a circumstance where it’s been one owner then it’s changed 
hands and then they’ve tried to relieve the interest and penalties on it or the same owner that 
asked the same? 
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DISKIN:  I would have to stretch my memory but there probably has Mr. Tyler I would assume 
there has been efforts.  My concern with this, I don’t have to vote on this but it’s up to you 
people but my opinion is if you do this you’ve got to be careful with what you do with commercial 
properties in some other towns.  Right now we have a commercial property in our foreclosure 
that owes about the same amount of taxes if this is to come forward I could foresee that this 
other individual or this corporation coming in and asking for the same thing which would amount 
to fifty or sixty thousand in interest.  It’s in the Town of North Elba and I’m sure there are 
properties that have the same situation and other personal properties. 
 
TYLER: Is that the case the same person that failed to pay and might look to relieve himself? 
 
DISKIN:  They haven’t asked because I don’t think they realize they can avail themselves of that 
but if this was done and it became public I could foresee them coming in and asking. 
 
TYLER:  I’m not asking you to take a broad brush over everything each circumstance needs to 
be looked at differently. 
 
DISKIN: Absolutely. This is a pretty viable commercial property in the Town of North Elba and 
Village of Lake Placid. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  It’s my understanding that the previous owner has nothing to do with this 
owner, correct?  This is a new owner. 
 
DISKIN: From what I understand there was a bankruptcy as I said and a mortgage company 
held a mortgage on it during the course of the bankruptcy the mortgage was bought by another 
group and they bought the mortgage from the mortgage company and then got permission from 
the bankruptcy court to foreclose on the property and take ownership and they foreclosed on 
their mortgage and became owners. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  So during the bankruptcy the interest and penalties still accumulate? 
 
DISKIN:  Yes unless there is an order from the court that tells us to charge an amount, a 
different amount than what the statutory amount is and we have no such order in this case so – 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  So I guess my question to Mr. Tyler would be what are the consequences if the 
county doesn’t grant this?  I mean do they pack up their tent and go home?  What happens I 
guess? 
 
TYLER:  Well I had meeting with them last week and they already have put a substantial 
amount of money into it but they did mention a tree farm up there if things got bad or they 
couldn’t get enough on this situation. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Mr. Manning can the county do a not forgive interest and penalties for this July 
date but can we do a structured settlement for that?  In other words can you extend that over a 
period of time? 
 
MANNING: What is the July date?  I don’t understand that. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  That’s the total amount due for 2017. 
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MANNING:  That just seems every month there’s – 
 
DISKIN:  Both of these properties by the way would be in our second round of closures this year 
because they both go back to either ’14 or ’15 in the amount of taxes owed and they’ve already 
received notification for the foreclosures. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: So assuming the amount of taxes that are due excluding the interest and 
penalties their plan is to come pay that in full correct? Mr. Tyler? 
 
TYLER:  Yes. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: So this is probably going to put a real dent in the cash flow I’m certain but so 
my question is can the county do a contractual agreement on the interest and penalties not 
forgive them but maybe stretch it out over a two year period? 
 
MANNING:  Yes, there is nothing in the law that I know of that will allow that.  I mean we have a 
couple of programs where we allow people to pay installments and that’s by local law any such 
situation would have to be by local law and taxes are a funny thing the county only has the 
authority to collect taxes, levy taxes and modify taxes by law set forth by the legislature so we 
can’t make our own laws regarding taxing so I don’t know of anything in the law that would allow 
that.  
I agree with Mike the real property tax law provides for the forgiveness of penalties and interest 
in very limited situations none of which the county made a mistake or there have been some 
propriety by the county this doesn’t seem to fall within the law perimeters.  We’ve also a policy 
where you know we’ve been approached by many people to forgive interest and penalties 
because a lawyer made a mistake at closing and didn’t properly let someone know that they had 
back taxes or somebody’s bill didn’t get to them and things of that nature.  I understand the 
importance of the Westport Golf Club to Westport and the County and probably to others all 
over so I do agree with Mike this doesn’t fit within the law and also that it could open up to 
others to come in and say, look we’ve had some problems here for this reason, that reason, the 
other reason we’ve gone bankrupt or someone died or those people died or whatever and I’m 
not being facetious just not coming up with great examples and we’d like penalties and interest 
dissolved so it doesn’t fit within the parameters of the law.  If this board feels otherwise and 
feels out of fairness because of their situation because there was a bankruptcy involved and 
something that got lost in the shuffle that’s your prerogative but as far as the law is concerned I 
agree with Mike that it’s not proper. 
 
TYLER:  Doesn’t also the State allow us if it’s detrimental to the county? 
 
DISKIN:  Yes. 
 
TYLER: So it could be in this situation. 
 
PRESTON:  Well I talked with Ike on this and I certainly understand where he is coming from 
but it’s a really, really, sticky situation because from what I understand Santa’s Workshop is 
going up for taxes and I can assure you if we do it for one we are going to do it for all but there 
lies the issue so having said that my question for you Mike was, you’ve been here a lot longer 
than me in your recollection has there ever been, is this an unusual circumstance and has there 
ever been a time when we have relieved the taxes?  I would say I would be in favor of some sort 
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of an agreement like Tommy said, if there is any way possible we could do it that they could pay 
over an X amount of time but totally writing them off?  No. 
 
DISKIN:  The most recent one I can think of Mr. Preston and it never got to the point where we 
cancelled penalties and interest was in North Hudson with the campground, the Yogi Bear 
Campground and they attempted to do that and we said no so they did come together and pay 
the taxes but that was a fairly large camp.  It is across from the Frontier Town Property there.  I 
don’t recollect any other properties where we have agreed to do this that have come in and 
done this. We’ve had a lot of people come in and ask for this and unless we’ve found an error 
where there was something we did in the billing or for some reason we were at fault we’ve never 
granted these in my time, with a few exceptions well, maybe there’s been a couple of 
exceptions where they have done that. 
 
POLITI:  You know I go back to Ike and I understand Ike’s willing to advocate for this type of 
thing in your town because it’s an important property for Westport and I’m going to tell you right 
now it’s a slippery slope and I don’t think it’s the responsibility of the people of Essex County to 
finance unstable investments and if this ever happened in Lake Placid to the Lake Placid Club 
or any of the golf courses in Lake Placid or any of the investors of the $2 billion plus dollar 
investments in Lake Placid it would be extremely difficult for this county to try and subsidize all 
of those things.  With that being said I would never support such a request on my constituents in 
North Elba to relieve the situation that was just there now with the commercial property that 
exists there. These people had an opportunity to request a PILOT agreement at one time I 
guess they could even request it now in lieu of taxes to potentially resolve the financial pitfalls 
that they’re facing but this is, we all feel badly for our community when it faces this type of thing 
but this is the economics we all face in all of our communities hopefully if it doesn’t work out 
somebody else will buy it maybe somebody that is financially set or has deeper pockets.  I don’t 
know but I think that this is, we are on thin ice here.  I understand Ike’s need to do this.  I have 
no problem with the request but I can’t support it.  I’m sorry. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Any other discussion? 
 
McNALLY:  I understand completely what he’s going through with this but I can’t vote for this.  
I’ve seen a local family in the Town of Minerva that had the husband pass away, doing spaghetti 
suppers and bake sales and gofundme pages trying to save the house, the primary residence 
for their 19 year old daughter so although I see the situation at the golf course it would be very 
hard to go along with that when you see the local people struggling in their own communities. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Other discussion? 
 
MERRIHEW: I would just like to add to that a similar situation a couple years ago on a piece of 
property, a commercial structure here in Elizabethtown I did bring that consideration forward 
understanding it probably would not pass, the ownership now has developed into a very, very 
successful commercial business so I understand where Ike is coming from.  I know how 
important the golf course is to all of Essex County but I could not support that today for those 
reasons. 
 
PRESTON: One last thing because Roby brought up the PILOT program, this is directed to Mr. 
Manning, is there anything that would stop them in trying to get a PILOT agreement going 
forward at this point? 
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MANNING:  I don’t know of anything.  I’ll look into it but I don’t know anything about a PILOT 
agreement with the county but usually they will come through the IDA. 
 
PRESTON: We have approved those before to my recollection. 
 
MANNING: IDA PILOTS yes if they can get some sort of relationship with IDA and some sort of 
funding through the IDA they could certainly do that. 
 
PRESTON: Thank you. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  With PILOTS I mean each taxing jurisdiction at least to my clarification of a 
PILOT it’s not automatic the schools would have to agree to it, the town would have to agree to 
it and the county would have to agree to it. 
 
MANNING:  That’s the concept sometimes it’s just pushed through by a town or something. 
 
HARRINGTON: It appears to me that the current owners should have done a little more 
research and some intensive math and realized what they were getting into. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Anything further? 
 
MARNELL: Golf courses nationwide are struggling, if they lose that golf course there probably 
will never be another golf course there it will be a tree farm or a pasture and golf courses helps 
the economy and the town and they don’t have an awful lot to offer in Westport.  We have 
PILOT programs in housing, senior housing developers well everybody pays all the rest of them 
have to pay a portion of it and I would support that because Westport needs it.  If they need help 
we help other businesses, people get grants for – they just got grants North Hudson and 
Minerva got one for horse barns from the State, I don’t like it but the businesses in North Elba if 
that fails somebody else will grab that up but golf courses they are not doing well anywhere.  
 
GILLILLAND:  Thank you. 
 
MONTY:  I’m sitting here listening to everything and I don’t dispute what anybody has said here 
but now the businesses in North Elba were the circumstances similar to the circumstances in 
Westport? 
 
DISKIN:  No. 
 
MONTY:  No.  Were circumstances at the Land of Make Believe, are they similar 
circumstances? 
 
DISKIN: Santa’s Workshop you mean? 
 
MONTY:  Yes Santa’s Workshop, not yet.  We’re looking at this in different circumstances here 
in one sense.  Number two, Westport has lost the Champlain Valley Milling in the last year now 
we’re losing the golf course. If you drive through Westport and go from one end of the town to 
the other there’s fifteen homes for sale and I’m not saying there are not homes for sale in other 
communities because there are but if we don’t try to help them that’s one more nail in the coffin 
in Westport.  I can remember as a kid growing up in Westport that was a thriving community but 
it’s getting to the point that community is dying and it’s one of the most pristine communities on 
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Lake Champlain.  We have a beautiful Lake Champlain Corridor that we don’t invest enough 
money in. We invest money in other areas and I just think we need to invest in that to continue 
the future. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  I mean Mike I’ve been around a long time, probably too long but anyway 
maybe directly we haven’t relieved interest and penalties on property but let me tell you 
indirectly we have gone out of our way to help businesses in situations time shares in North 
Elba is an example years ago on the back taxes, Frontier Town property we kept out of the tax 
sale almost three years okay?  And we voted against selling it to the high bidder so maybe we 
didn’t relieve interest and penalties but we have certainly tried to help communities that have 
significant pieces of property that lie within their importance of those communities. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Thank you. 
 
MANNNING:  When you talk about the circumstances being different yes, the circumstances are 
different in all of these types of situations but it’s the request for the waiver of penalties and 
interest which it the issue so everybody has a different reason why. 
 
MONTY:  You have to consider everything. 
 
MANNING: And I understand that but the law doesn’t provide for us to waive penalties and 
interests I’m just saying that, I’m not taking sides here.  Worse-case scenario that could happen 
and Frontier Town is a completely different situation we didn’t waive penalties and interests, we 
didn’t do anything we did what we did. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  We rejected the high bid and kept it out of the tax sale for three years. 
 
MONTY:  And they still need to come up with a large amount of money from the county. 
 
MANNING:  For good reason. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: So don’t say we didn’t do anything for Frontier Town. 
 
MANNING: Okay I’m not arguing I’m just saying in my mind they are worlds apart as far as 
making an argument and we pulled Frontier Town for good reason as everybody knows. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: And I’m not disputing that I’m saying we make exceptions to the rules. 
 
MANNING:  The worse-case scenario and the problem is as Roby, Randy and Mike and I have 
discussed is this will open the flood gates for everybody to come in and say I have this problem 
I want interest and penalties waived.  You can do what you want.  Worse-case scenario I see in 
this type of situation is if let’s say for some reason interest and penalties are too heavy for them 
to pay and they can’t pay them and they lose the property to foreclosure it comes back to Essex 
County, Essex County could give the golf course to Westport for free so I’ll stop speaking 
because I don’t want to muddy the waters but and Mike might want to chime in on it. 
 
TYLER:  I just want to add again you don’t paint a wide brush with this.  Each individual case is 
different and this is definitely different for the Town of Westport than any of these other cases 
that we talked about and anyone we talked about if it does go through. 
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POLITI: Ike I just don’t want to be Judge and juror on every single one that comes down the 
road. I don’t want to have to listen to the same types of situations and have to make a decision 
on that type of situation and then make a decision on yours, and then on Jerry’s and then on, I 
don’t know those things and I’m not about to play God in determining the financial situation with 
all of these folks.  I don’t want to do it and I can’t imagine anyone else in here wants to do that. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  So are we absolutely certain that we are forbidden by law to stretch those 
interest and penalties out over two or three year period? 
 
MANNING:  I’m not absolutely certain. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Can you find that out? 
 
MANNING: I can get something from the State. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Thank you. 
 
MANNING:  And the Pilot too.  I’ll look into that. 
 
GILLILLAND: Any further discussion? 
 
MANNING:  Do they want to table this until the next meeting? 
 
TYLER:  I’ll move to withdraw. 
 
GILLILLAND: Okay. 
 
MONTY:  Withdraw or table? 
 
GILLILLAND:  This vote would be just to advance it to the full board. 
 
TYLER:  Withdraw. 
 
GILLILLAND:  You are withdrawing your resolution? 
 
TYLER: Correct. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  And I’ll second the withdrawal. 
 
GILLILLAND: Okay the resolution is off the table.  Thank you for the debate.   Any other further 
business to come to the ways and means committee? 
 
MORROW:  I’d like to move a resolution to surplus and transfer to the Town of Chesterfield a 
1997 Ford Model LT, 9000 dump truck. 
 

35. RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS TO A 1997 FORD MODEL LT9000 DUMP 
TRUCK IN THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS. Morrow, Scozzafava 

 
GILLILLAND:  Discussion? 
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MORROW: I’ve got the sheet from Amy and the body is poor, the interior is poor, the 
mechanical is poor, suspension, frame and brakes is bad but on the good side is it does start 
and there is keys available to it.  We only want it to go half a mile back and forth down at our 
transfer station so we can put a little work into it. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Further discussion?  
 
PALMER:  Again this was based upon the discussion that we had early that any of these 
vehicles that we normally put on the internet for sale we would offer to the towns first if you and 
fact wanted them we would surplus them directly to you instead of putting them through the 
auction process so I’m certainly okay with this. 
 
PRESTON:  We we’re getting I think $7.00 for Tom but for Jerry you probably only want to 
charge $5.00. 
 
PALMER:  At one time we got all the way up to $7.00 but Randy have you ever heard the term, 
“owe it to you all your life rather than cheat you out of it?”  Well that’s how my $7.00 is because I 
haven’t seen my $7.00.  (laughter) 
 
GILLILLAND:  Motion on the table, second to it any further discussion?  Being none, all in favor, 
opposed – carries.  Further business to come before this committee?  Being none, we are 
adjourned. 
 
 As there was no further discussion to come before this ways and means committee it 
was adjourned at 10:50 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Judy Garrison, Clerk 
Board of Supervisors  

 


